
Agenda                        Board of Supervisors         July 10, 2023 
 

 

Russell County Page 1 
 

  
RUSSELL COUNTY 

 
BOARD OF SUPERVISOR’S MEETING 

 
AGENDA – JULY 10, 2023 

 
BOS Board Room                             Regular Meeting               6:00 PM 

 
Russell County Governmental Center 

Lebanon, Virginia 24266 
 

 
 

 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER & ROLL CALL – Clerk of the Board 
 
INVOCATION   
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PROCLAMATION 
 

1. Velma Mabry House Day – July 12th, 2023 - 100th Birthday 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. Approval of Minutes.  Consider approval of the minutes of the  
following meeting of the Russell County Board of Supervisors….……………B-1 
 

a. Unapproved minutes of June 5, 2023 
b. Unapproved minutes of June 26, 2023  

 
2. Approval of Expenditures. Consider approval of expenditures presented  

for payment……………………………………………………………………………...B-2 
 

3. Committee Appointments for Board Consideration………………………………B-3 
 



Agenda                        Board of Supervisors         July 10, 2023 
 

 

Russell County Page 2 
 

 
RC Library Board 
 
Yvonne Dye     3-Year Term        June 30, 2023 
Susan Breeding                            3-Year Term June 30, 2023    
 
RC Department of Social Services (DSS) 
 
Brian Ferguson                  4-Year Term               June 30, 2023 
Sharon Owens                    4-Year Term                 June 30, 2023 
 
Russell County Tourism Advisory Committee  
 
Alice Meade                                   4-Year Term                 June 30, 2023 
Doug Hubbard                               4-Year Term                 June 30, 2023 
Lisa Hubbard                                 4-Year Term                 June 30, 2023 
Jennifer Chumbley                        4-Year Term                 June 30, 2023 
Dustin Blackson                            4-Year Term                 June 30, 2023 
Carly Bruck                                    4-Year Term                 June 30, 2023 
Janice Halsey                                4-Year Term                 June 30, 2023 
 

CITIZEN’S COMMENT PERIOD (Limited to 3 Minutes)  
 
CONSTITUTIONAL OFFICER REPORTS AND REQUESTS 
  
COUNTY ATTORNEY REPORTS AND REQUESTS 

 
COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REPORTS AND REQUESTS 
 

REPORTS 
 

1. Office of the Comptroller – Russell County’s Subrecipient CARES Review                             
Report…………………………………………………..………………………………….D-1 
 

2. Virginia Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services – Russell  
County’s Animal Shelter Report………………………………………………………D-2 
 

3. VDOT Monthly Road System Report………..………………………………………..D-3 
 

4. Castlewood & Honaker Cannery Opens (July 25th, 2023)………………………...D-4 
 

REQUESTS 
  

5. Russell County Recovery Inc Opioid Grant Application FY22/23 - $26,000 &                  
FY23/24 - $111,200…………………………………………………………..…….…….D-5 
 



Agenda                        Board of Supervisors         July 10, 2023 
 

 

Russell County Page 3 
 

 
6. Department of Criminal Justice Services – SRO Incentive Grant Program –  

SRO Grant 24-290-B - $222,210 & SRO Grant 24-422-A - $222,208……………..D-6 
 

7. Department of Criminal Justice Services – ARPA Law Enforcement  
Equipment Grant $481,000 …………………………………………………………….D-7 
  

8. Wellspring Foundation of Southwest VA – Dante Steam Building Restoration  
Project & Bernie Williams Workforce Center Grant - $113,877……….…………D-8 
 

9. Virginia Coalfield Economic Development Authority (VCEDA) Grant -                               
$25,000 - Laurel Bed Lake Feasibility Study Request for Quotes (RFQ)...........D-9 
 

10. Department of Criminal Justice – Victim Witness Grant - $65,100……………..D-10 
 

11. Marc Mero – Champion of Choices – RC School Event - $6,000………………..D-11 
 

12. Highlands Juvenile Detention Alternatives Program Resolution……………….D-12 
 

13. RC Landfill Industrial Tire Shredder Quotes/Bids………………………………....D-13 
 

14. Commissioner of Revenue, Library, & Emergency Management Travel                    
Requests………………………………………………………………………………..…D-14 
 

15. RC Planning Commission Plat………………………………………………………...D-15 
. 

BOARD DISCUSSIONS & REMINDERS  
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
COUNTY AGENCY / BOARD REPORTS: 
        

• Treasurer’s Report ………………………………………………………………………E 
• RC IDA ………...…………………………………………………………………………..F 
• RC PSA …………………………………………………………………………………...G 
• Castlewood W&S ………………………………………………………………………..H 
• RC Tourism………………………………………………………………………………..I 
• RC Planning Commission ……………………………………………………………..J 
• Conference Center………………………………………………………………………K 
• RC Fitness Center……………………………………………………………………….L 
• RC Transportation & Safety…………………………………………………………...M 
• RC Cannery Reports…………………………………………………………………….N 
• RC Building Inspector…………………………………………………………………..O 
• RC Litter Report………………………………………………………………………….P   



                     PROCLAMATION 
                                                    Honoring 

                                    Mrs. Velma Mabry House    

     

WHEREAS, Russell County Virginia Board of County 
Supervisors are delighted to have residents of Russell 
County in Dante, Virginia with good morality and 
Citizenship; and

WHEREAS, Mrs. Velma Mabry House born July 12, 1923 
in Spartanburg, South Carolina to the parents of 
Elizabeth and Emmanuel Mabry, and as a child relocating 
to Russell County as a long-term resident in 1930; and

WHEREAS, after graduating from Swift Memorial College 
in Rogersville, Tennessee, and deeply committed to 
educating “Others” in 1941 started her professional 
teaching career, in which she taught for many years in 
several schools in Russell County including Arty-Lee High 
School in Sawmill Hollow, Lebanon, and Dante 
elementary schools until retirement in the early 1980’s; 
and



WHEREAS, faithfully serving her community, on the 
Dante Lives On Board, presently serving as “Mother of” 
First Mount Calvary Baptist Church, as well, Clinch River 
Missionary Baptist Association, and previously engaged 
with various committees, mission boards, and most 
recently fully relinquishing her duties as Church 
Treasurer; and  

WHEREAS, as paraphrased by Mrs. Velma Mabry House 
“Others” from Charles D. Meigs’ “Lord Help Me Live From 
Day to Day”: “… Others Lord, yes others, let this my moto 
be, for even when I kneel to pray, my thoughts will be of 
Others”; and 

WHEREAS, we come to this momentous occasion to 
celebrate the prestigious centenary birth day of Mrs. 
Velma Mabry House, reaching this super major milestone 
in her life of the wonderful age of One Hundred,

                         (100th Birthday); 



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, THE RUSSELL 
COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, do herby proclaim    
July 12, 2023 the first annual: 

             “VELMA MABRY HOUSE DAY”
 in Russell County, Virginia and invites all residents to 
observe and commemorate throughout the week of a 
well lived life.             



 
     Board of Supervisors                       Action Item B-1 

137 Highland Drive  Presenter: Chairperson 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

          Meeting: 7/10/23       6:00 PM 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Approval of Minutes  

Request approval of the minutes from the following meeting: 

o Unapproved minutes of June 5, 2023 

o Unapproved minutes of June 26, 2023 
  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s): 
Board discretion 
 

SUGGESTED MOTION(s): 
Motion to approve Board Minutes. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

• Board Minutes 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



June 05, 2023 

A regular monthly meeting of the Russell County Board of Supervisors was held on Monday, June 05, 
2023 beginning with regular session at 5:00 pm followed by the regular monthly meeting at 6:00 pm at 
the Russell County Government Center in Lebanon, Virginia. 

The Clerk called the meeting to order. 

Roll Call by the Clerk: 

Present: 

Tim Lovelace 
Lou Wallace 
Carl Rhea 
David Eaton 
Steve Breeding 
Rebecca Dye 
Oris Christian 
 
Lonzo Lester, Clerk 
Vicki Porter, Deputy Clerk 
Katie Patton, County Attorney 
 
Absent: 
 
None 
 

EXECUTIVE (CLOSED) SESSION 
 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second Oris Christian and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
enter into Executive (closed) Session to discuss legal matters pursuant to Section 2.2-3711(A)(7)(8) – 
Legal discussions concerning RC Public Service Authority (PSA) – Civil Action No. CL22-653 Crossroads 
Engineering LLC vs. The Russell County Public Service Authority. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, Oris Christian, Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and David Eaton 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL TO RETURN TO REGULAR SESSION 
 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
return to regular session. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Lou Wallace, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 
 



 
CERTIFICATION OF EXECUTIVE (CLOSED) SESSION 

 
Pursuant to §2.2-3712 (D) of the Code of Virginia 1950, as amended, each member of the 
Board of Supervisors upon the Roll Call certifies that to the best of their knowledge (i) only 
public business matters lawfully exempted from the open meeting requirements under the 
Virginia Freedom of Information Act and (ii) only such public business matters that were 
identified in the motion(s) by which the closed meeting was convened were heard, 
discussed or considered in the meeting by the Board of Supervisors. 
Any member of the Board of Supervisors who believes that there was a departure from the 
requirements of clauses (i) and (ii) above shall so state prior to the vote, indicating the 
substance of the departure that, in his or her judgment, has taken place. 
Are there any Supervisors who believe a departure has taken place? 
Seeing none if you agree that the matters heard, discussed, or considered during the 
closed meeting were pursuant only to the motion(s) by which the closed meeting was 
convened, please signify by saying aye or yes. 
 
Tim Lovelace - Aye 
Lou Ann Wallace - Aye 
Carl Rhea - Aye 
Steve Breeding - Aye 
David Eaton - Aye 
Rebecca Dye - Aye 
Oris Christian - Aye 
 
The Clerk called the meeting to order. 
 
Invocation by Caleb Johnson, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag. 
 

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the agenda. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye: Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian   
Nay:  None 
 

PUBLIC HEARING HELD ON THE FY 2023/2024 COUNTY WIDE BUDGET 
 

Pursuant to being advertised in a local newspaper for two (2) consecutive weeks, a public hearing was 
held on the FY 2023/2024 County Wide Budget. 
 
The Chair opened the public hearing to comments, hearing none the public hearing was closed. 
 
 
 
 



 
Presentations 
 
Dr. Kim Hooker – RC School Superintendent gave the Annual School Board Report and 
introduced the new Director of Finance, Brooke Webb. 
 
New Business 
 

APPROVAL OF THE MAY 01, 2023 AND MAY 22, 2023 MINUTES 
 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second Carl Rhea and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors 
to approve the May 01, 2023 and May 22, 2023 minutes and dispense with the reading thereof. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, Carl Rhea, Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace, David Eaton, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF GENERAL COUNTY INVOICES 
 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second Tim Lovelace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve general county invoices in the amount of $1,056,002.72, including reoccurring and 
withholdings. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Lou Wallace, David Eaton, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay: None 
 
The Chair tabled all committee appointments. 
 
Citizens’ Comment 
 
 The Chair opened the meeting to public comments. 
 
Linda Couch, Mayor for the Town of Cleveland asked that the Board donate to the Cleveland 4th of July 
celebration. 
 

APPROVAL OF A $500 APPROPRIATION TO LEBANON, CLEVELAND AND HONAKER 4TH OF JULY 
CELEBRATIONS 

 
Motion made by Carl Rhea, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a $500 donation to the Town of Lebanon, Town of Honaker and the Town of Cleveland for their 
4th of July Celebrations. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Carl Rhea, Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 



Citizens’ Comment continued: 
 
Jerry Connor commented that he had issues with the County PSA and the Community Work Program.  
He also was concerned about the numerous break ins in the county recently. 
 
Wanda Burke, Lebanon commented that she would be very disappointed if the Board doesn’t approve a 
donation to the Mark Maro event. She also stated that she would make it extremely public if the Board 
did not help with this. 
 
The Chair closed public comment. 
 

APPROVAL OF A VDOT RESOLUTION TO DISMISS THE PETITION FOR ABANDOMENT OF RTE. 871 
 
Motion made by Oris Christian, second Carl Rhea and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a VDOT Resolution to dismiss the petition for abandonment of Rte. 871. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Oris Christian, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Lou Wallace and Rebecca Dye 
Nay:  None 
 
The Chair set a Budget meeting date of June 26, 2023 at 6:00 pm. 
 

APPROVAL TO MOVE THE JULY BOARD MEETING TO JULY 10, 2023 AT 6:00 PM 
 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second Carl Rhea and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
move the July 03, 2023 Board of Supervisors meeting to Monday, July 10, 2023 at 6:00 pm. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, David Eaton, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF THE CPRMA CONTRACT AND THE SOLID WASTE TRANSPORTAION CONTRACT 
 
Motion made by Tim Lovelace, second Carl Rhea and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the Cumberland Plateau Regional Waste Management Authority Disposal Contract and the 
Solid Waste Transportation Contract. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Lou Wallace, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF A VDOT RESOLUTION FOR A TEMPORARY BRIDGE CLOSURE OF RTE.687 
 
Motion made by David Eaton, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a VDOT Resolution supporting a temporary bridge closure of Rte. 687 for bridge replacement. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 



Nay:  None 
 
The Chair adjourned to reconvene on Monday, June 26, 2023 at 6:00 pm. 
 
 
 
_________________________                                             ______________________ 
Clerk of the Board                                                                   Chairperson 



June 26, 2023 

A reconvened mee�ng of the Russell County Board of Supervisors was held on Monday, June 26, 2023 at 
6:00 pm at the Russell County Government Center in Lebanon, Virginia. 

The Clerk called the mee�ng to order. 

Roll Call by the Clerk: 

Present: 
Tim Lovelace 
Lou Wallace 
David Eaton – par�cipa�ng remotely (by phone) from Charleston, SC 
Carl Rhea 
Steve Breeding 
Rebecca Dye 
Oris Chris�an 
 
Lonzo Lester, Clerk 
Vicki Porter, Deputy Clerk 
Ka�e Paton, County Atorney 
 
Absent: 
None 

Invoca�on by Caleb Johnson, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag. 

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 

Mo�on made by Steve Breeding, second Tim Lovelace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the agenda as amended to allow David Eaton, Supervisor to par�cipate and vote remotely from 
Charleston, SC where he is currently on vaca�on.  This is pursuant to Virginia code sec�on 2.2 3708.3 as 
adopted by Russell County. 

The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Lou Wallace, Rebecca Dye and Oris Chris�an 
Nay:  None 
 

PUBLIC HEARING HELD ON THE RUSSELL COUNTY FY 2023/2024 COUNTY-WIDE BUDGET 
 

Pursuant to being adver�sed in a local newspaper for two (2) consecu�ve weeks, a public hearing was 
held on the Russell County FY 2023/2024 County-Wide Budget.  
 
The Chair opened the public hearing to comments. 
 
Charlie Hess stated that convenience sites or trash sites are not convenient for the ci�zens and the 
Board needs to work on this. 
 
Hearing no other comments, the public hearing was closed. 
 



Presenta�ons 
 
Cheryl Robinete, Russell County Recovery, Inc. addressed the board concerning an Opioid Program 
Grant Applica�on for her organiza�on.  She commented that the support of the Russell County’s 
Ministerial Associa�on was phenomenal.  
 
Lonzo Lester, County Administrator gave a detailed presenta�on and update on the Russell County 
FY2023/2024 County- Wide Budget. 
 

APPROVAL OF FY 2023/2024 GENERAL OPERATING BUDGET 
 

Mo�on made by Steve Breeding, second Carl Rhea and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the FY 2023/2024 County- Wide General Opera�ng Budget. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, David Eaton, Rebecca Dye and Oris Chris�an 
Nay:  None 
 

A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE THE BUDGETS, AS AMENDED, AND APPROPRIATE FUNDS 
FOR THE COUNTY OF RUSSELL AND THE RUSSELL COUNTY SCHOOL DIVISION FOR THE 
FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING JULY 1, 2023, AND ENDING JUNE 30, 2024 

 
 WHEREAS, the Budget/Finance Commitee has submited to the Russell County Board of 
Supervisors a proposed annual budget for the County for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2023, and ending 
June 30, 2024, which has been reviewed by the Board of Supervisors; and 
 

WHEREAS, it is necessary to adopt said budget and appropriate sufficient funds to cover the 
requirements included therein; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors, in exercising its independent judgment and in concert with 

the Russell County School Board, has considered the school’s annual opera�ng budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, a�er considering the availability of local funds, approval of the Russell County School 

Board’s Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Educa�onal Budget is based upon funding from the federal government in 
the amount of $7,426,790; from the state government in the amount of $35,583,975; from the local 
appropria�ons in the amount of $9,101,317; and other local revenues in the amount of $472,554; 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the annual budget in the sum of $1,978,600 for fiscal year 

2023/2024 be, and is hereby, approved for the opera�on of food service programs authorized and 
approved by the Russell County School Board subject to and con�ngent upon the availability of funds; 

 
BE IT STILL FURTHER RESOLVED that the $9,101,317 appropriated above from the General Fund 

for Educa�on, includes $8,024,781 for the local contribu�on to the School Division for support of the 
school opera�on budget; 

 
BE IT STILL FURTHER RESOLVED that an annual appropria�on in the sum of $1,076,536 for fiscal 

year 2023/2024 be, and is hereby, made for school debt service; for a total amount of $9,101,317 



appropriated for the Russell County School Division subject to and con�ngent upon the availability of 
funds; 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Russell County Board of Supervisors this 26th day of 

June 2023, that the fiscal year 2023/2024 annual budget of the Russell County School Division for school 
opera�ons in the amount of $54,563,236 be, and is hereby, approved subject to and con�ngent upon the 
availability of funds as indicated in the preamble hereto; 

 
BE IT STILL FURTHER RESOLVED that the following annual appropria�ons for fiscal year 2023/2024 

be, and are hereby, made in the General Fund for the following func�ons: 
 

Func�on              Amount 
 
General Administra�on  $        2,365,771 
Judicial Administra�on            3,167,728 
Public Safety            6,626,791 
Environmental Control            2,507,714 
General Services            1,049,521 
Health and Welfare            1,377,676 
Educa�on            9,334,518 
Parks, Recrea�on & Cultural               572,799 
Community Development               392,830 
Non-Departmental               276,000 
Capital Outlay & Transfers to Other Funds               521,900 
Debt Service               982,443 
  Total General Fund  $       29,175,691 

 
 
BE IT STILL FURTHER RESOLVED that the County Administrator be, and is hereby, authorized to 

transfer the appropria�ons in the General Fund Non-Departmental func�on to the related categories in 
the various General Fund func�ons. 

 
BE IT STILL FURTHER RESOLVED that the annual appropria�on in the sum of $375,000 for fiscal 

year 2023/2024 be, and is hereby, made in the Coal Road Fund. 
 
BE IT STILL FURTHER RESOLVED that the annual appropria�on in the sum of $203,032 for fiscal 

year 2023/2024 be, and is hereby, made in the Southwest Virginia ASAP Fund. 
  
BE IT STILL FURTHER RESOLVED that the annual appropria�on in the sum of $5,494,856 for fiscal 

year 2023/2024, and is hereby, made in the Social Services Fund for the Russell County Department of 
Social Services and is hereby, approved subject to and con�ngent upon the availability of funds as indicated 
in the preamble hereto. 

 
BE IT STILL FURTHER RESOLVED that the annual appropria�on of the Social Services Fund be, and 

is hereby, increased if and when addi�onal federal and/or state funds or local contribu�ons become 
available.  The County Administrator shall advise the Board of Supervisors in wri�ng of all such ac�ons. 



 
BE IT STILL FURTHER RESOLVED that the annual appropria�on in the sum of $1,400,0000 for fiscal 

year 2023/2024 be, and is hereby, made in the Comprehensive Services Act Fund and is hereby, approved 
subject to and con�ngent upon the availability of funds as indicated in the preamble hereto. 

 
BE IT STILL FURTHER RESOLVED that the annual contribu�ons that are hereby appropriated shall 

be disbursed on a monthly basis with the amount disbursed not to exceed one-twel�h of the total 
appropria�on, unless otherwise agreed upon.  Contribu�ons to the Russell County School Division and the 
Russell County Department of Social Services are exempt from this limita�on.  In addi�on, the County 
Administrator may require writen reports on how previous alloca�on(s) was/were spent before any future 
disbursements are made. 

 
BE IT STILL FURTHER RESOLVED that the funds be, and are hereby, appropriated for fiscal year 

2023/2024 in the various funds for con�nuing capital and special projects and grants as of June 30, 2022, 
not to exceed the Restricted, Commited and Assigned Fund Balances as recorded in the County’s audited 
accoun�ng records.  The County Administrator shall advise the Board of Supervisors in wri�ng of all such 
ac�ons. 

 
BE IT STILL FURTHER RESOLVED that the County Administrator be, and is hereby, authorized to 

transfer funds within appropria�on func�ons.  These transfers may be made to allow the disbursement of 
funds for unan�cipated costs incurred in daily County opera�ons and any such transfer may not result in 
a change in the total appropriated within the func�on. 

 
BE IT STILL FURTHER RESOLVED that the County Administrator is hereby the authorized signer for 

the County pety cash account available to allow for emergency purchases in daily County opera�ons. 
 
BE IT STILL FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Supervisors may amend this budget to adjust 

the aggregate amount to be appropriated during the current fiscal year as prescribed by § 15.2-2507 of 
the Code of Virginia of 1950, as amended, for all Russell County Departments, Russell County School 
Divisions, and Russell County Cons�tu�onal Offices. 

 
BE IT STILL FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Supervisors will amend the Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

County-wide Budget to reflect same percen�le of the State-wide Budget approved by the General 
Assembly for the Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Appropria�ons for a state-wide employee salary increase.  
 
 

APPROVAL TO OPEN THE CONVENIENCE SITES ON WEDNESDAYS FROM 12:00 PM TO 7:00 PM 
 

Mo�on made by Steve Breeding, second Carl Rhea and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the opening of all Russell County Convenience Sites on Wednesdays from 12:00 pm to 7:00 pm. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, Carl Rhea, Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace, David Eaton, Rebecca Dye and Oris Chris�an 
Nay:  None 
 

 
 
 



APPROVAL TO DESIGNATE JULY 03, 2023 AS A HOLIDAY FOR COUNTY EMPLOYEES 
 
Mo�on made by Carl Rhea, second Tim Lovelace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
designate Monday, July 03, 2023 as a holiday for County employees (following Virginia Supreme Court 
Declara�on as a state holiday). 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, David Eaton, Lou Wallace, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye and Oris Chris�an 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF A VDOT RESOLUTION TO SUPPORT THE TEMPORARY CLOSURE ROUTE 687 
 
Mo�on made by Steve Breeding, second Carl Rhea and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a VDOT Resolu�on request to support the temporary closure of Route 687 for bridge 
replacement. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, Carl Rhea, David Eaton, Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace, Rebecca Dye and Oris Chris�an 
Nay:  None 
 
The Chair adjourned the mee�ng. 
 
 
 



 
                                                      Board of Supervisors                         Action Item B-2 

137 Highland Drive Presenter: Chairperson 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

        Meeting: 7/10/23      6:00 PM 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Approval of Expenditures 

Request approval of the County’s June 2023 Monthly Expenditures: 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s):  
County’s June 2023 Monthly Expenditures are in compliance with budget and operational 

services. 

 
SUGGESTED MOTION(s): 
Motion to approve County’s June 2023 Monthly Expenditures. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

• June 2023 Monthly Expenditures 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



















 
Board of Supervisors  Action Item:  B-3 

137 Highland Drive Presenter: Chairperson  
Lebanon, VA 24266 

        Meeting: 7/10/23        6:00 PM 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
 
 
 
 

      Board Appointments 
RC Library Board 
 
Yvonne Dye     3-Year Term        June 30, 2023 
Susan Breeding                            3-Year Term June 30, 2023  
  
 
RC Department of Social Services (DSS) 
 
Brian Ferguson                  4-Year Term               June 30, 2023 
Sharon Owens                    4-Year Term                 June 30, 2023 
 
Russell County Tourism Advisory Committee  
 
Alice Meade                                   4-Year Term                 June 30, 2023 
Doug Hubbard                               4-Year Term                 June 30, 2023 
Lisa Hubbard                                 4-Year Term                 June 30, 2023 
Jennifer Chumbley                        4-Year Term                 June 30, 2023 
Dustin Blackson                            4-Year Term                 June 30, 2023 
Carly Bruck                                    4-Year Term                 June 30, 2023 
Janice Halsey                                4-Year Term                 June 30, 2023 
 

 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Presentation – Informational Only. 
 
Suggested Motion: 
 
Board Discretion.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Various    

  
 





















 

Board of Supervisors  Action Item D-1 – D-15 
137 Highland Drive Presenter: Administrator 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

                     Meeting: 7/10/23         6:00 PM 
 
 

 

County Administrator Reports & Requests 
The County Administrator Reports & Request for July 2023: 
 
REPORTS 

 
1. Office of the Comptroller – Russell County’s Subrecipient CARES Review                             

Report…………………………………………………..………………………………….D-1 
 

2. Virginia Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services – Russell  
County’s Animal Shelter Report………………………………………………………D-2 
 

3. VDOT Monthly Road System Report………..………………………………………..D-3 
 

4. Castlewood & Honaker Cannery Opens (July 25th, 2023)………………………...D-4 
 

REQUESTS 
  

5. Russell County Recovery Inc Opioid Grant Application FY22/23 - $26,000 &                  
FY23/24 - $111,200…………………………………………………………..…….…….D-5 
 

6. Department of Criminal Justice Services – SRO Incentive Grant Program –  
SRO Grant 24-290-B - $222,210 & SRO Grant 24-422-A - $222,208……………..D-6 
 

7. Department of Criminal Justice Services – ARPA Law Enforcement  
Equipment Grant $481,000 …………………………………………………………….D-7 
  

8. Wellspring Foundation of Southwest VA – Dante Steam Building Restoration  
Project & Bernie Williams Workforce Center Grant - $113,877……….…………D-8 
 

9. Virginia Coalfield Economic Development Authority (VCEDA) Grant -                               
$25,000 - Laurel Bed Lake Feasibility Study Request for Quotes (RFQ)...........D-9 
 

10. Department of Criminal Justice – Victim Witness Grant - $65,100……………..D-10 
 

11. Marc Mero – Champion of Choices – RC School Event - $6,000………………..D-11 
 

12. Highlands Juvenile Detention Alternatives Program Resolution……………….D-12 
 

13. RC Landfill Industrial Tire Shredder Quotes/Bids………………………………....D-13 
 

14. Commissioner of Revenue, Library, & Emergency Management Travel                    
Requests………………………………………………………………………………..…D-14 
 

15. RC Planning Commission Plat………………………………………………………...D-15 
 
 
 
 



 

    (804) 225-2109          FAX (804) 786-3356                                                                                         TDD (804) 371-8588 
 

 

 
 

COMMONWEALTH of VIRGINIA 
 

 
LEWIS R. McCABE, CPA, CGFM, CGMA Office of the Comptroller P. O. BOX 1971 

COMPTROLLER  RICHMOND, VIRGINIA 23218-1971 

 

June 15, 2023 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

 TO: Lonzo Lester, County Administrator 

  Russell County 

   

 FROM: Amanda R. Simpson, Director, Compliance Oversight and Federal Reporting 

 Department of Accounts  

 

SUBJECT:     Subrecipient Monitoring Review Report 

 

 

Department of Accounts (DOA) has performed a Subrecipient Monitoring Review (SMR) pursuant to the compliance 

monitoring and oversight requirements detailed in the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (CARES 

Act), and Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for federal awards 

(Uniform Guidance) 2 CFR § 200.332, for recipients of Coronavirus Relief Funds (CRF) (ALN 21.019). 

 

Scope of Review 

 

In order to substantiate Russell County’s compliance with the CARES Act requirements, the SMR process required 

certifications to the proper use of the CARES Act funds, return of any unused funds, maintenance of proper 

accounting records, and accurate reporting of expenditures to Department of Accounts of Coronavirus Relief Funds. 

These certifications were produced using DOA’s Subrecipient Monitoring Secure Portal upon completion of a 

survey, that was then signed electronically by the Authorized Representative (County Administrator) 

and a Fiscal Contact from Russell County. 

 

Conclusion 
 

Russell County certified affirmatively that all requirements of the CARES Act funding distributed by DOA have 

been met and that all obligations and expenditures of the funds have been reported accurately.  DOA has no further 

questions at this time. 

 

Closeout of the Subaward 
 

Because Russell County has certified all CRF funds as fully compliant with the Commonwealth’s and U.S. 

Department of the Treasury’s requirements, the subawards (Transfers 1 and 2 of CRF Funds; and, if applicable, 

Municipal Utility Relief funds of the CARES Act) to Russell County are considered fully expended; completely and 

accurately reported; and therefore, closed.  No further expenditures related to CRF will be considered.  However, if 

Steve Breeding
Highlight

Steve Breeding
Highlight

Steve Breeding
Highlight

Steve Breeding
Highlight

Steve Breeding
Highlight

Steve Breeding
Highlight

Steve Breeding
Highlight

Steve Breeding
Highlight

Steve Breeding
Highlight

Steve Breeding
Highlight



Lonzo Lester, County Administrator  

June 15, 2023 

Page 2 

 

you become aware of anything that impacts your locality certification status, Russell County must contact DOA and 

report the modification immediately. 

 

Summary and Remarks 

 

Thank you for your and your staff’s assistance through this Subrecipient Monitoring Review process.  If any 

questions arise regarding the above, please contact me. 

 

 

cc: Randy Williams, Commissioner of Revenue, Russell County 

  

 Department of Accounts 

 Lewis R. McCabe, State Comptroller 

 Sharon H. Lawrence, Deputy State Comptroller 

 Linda Lee, Assistant Director, Compliance Oversight 

 Beth Fauerbach, Lead Quality Assurance Analyst, Compliance Oversight 

   

 

 
 

 

 

 

Steve Breeding
Highlight













































































































































































































































































































Commonwealth of Virginia 
Virginia Department of Criminal Justice Services 

 Statement of Grant Award (SOGA) Instructions 
 

Virginia Department of Criminal Justice Services 
1100 Bank Street  Richmond, VA 23219  
www.dcjs.virginia.gov 10/2021 

 

The Statement of Grant Award is included within the Award Package. It include the DCJS, federal, and/or state grant 
information, the three contact persons of record, and the approved budget. Please have this document signed by the 
County Administrator or City Manager. A Signature Power form will need to be submitted if someone other than the 
assigned person signs the SOGA. For more information, please contact grantsmgmt@dcjs.virginia.gov. 

 Project Director, Project Administrator, and Finance Officer 

o Project Director – The person who will have day-to-day responsibility for managing the project.  

o Project Administrator – The person who has authority to formally commit the locality or state agency to 
complying with all the terms of the grant application including the provision of the required cash match. This 
must be the city, county or town manager; the chief elected officer of the locality, such as the Mayor or Chairman 
of the Board of Supervisors; or, in the case of a state agency, the agency head. If someone other than one of these 
officials has been delegated the authority to sign, and signs the grant application, provide a copy of the letter, 
memorandum or other document by which the signing authority was delegated.  

o Finance Officer – The person who will be responsible for fiscal management of funds. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Steve Breeding
Highlight

Steve Breeding
Highlight

Steve Breeding
Highlight

Steve Breeding
Highlight

































PUBLIC NOTICE 
 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP) 

Laurel Bed Lake Access Development Feasibility Study 

Engineering and Technical Consulting Services 
The County of Russell is currently seeking a Laurel Bed Lake Feasibility Study from 
engineering/consulting firms with capabilities and experience in recreational access 
development design to provide support for the Russell County’s Laurel Bed Lake 
Feasibility Study Project. The Board of Supervisors of Russell County, Virginia, 
hereinafter referred to as “The Board,” hereby issues to qualified firms or individuals a 
Request for Proposals (hereinafter referred to as “RFP”).  The Board proposes to award 
a contract for these consulting services to assist the Board in determining the feasibility 
of a substantial recreational project. 

 
Request for Proposals (RFP) will be evaluated based on the following information: 

 
1. Experience and qualifications of firms or individuals. 
2. Offeror’s past work experience with feasibility of substantial recreational projects. 
3. Relevant experience in providing similar consulting services. 
4. Capability to meet recreational engineering/technical consulting services requirements. 
5. Experience in recreational access development and design consulting services in the 

following areas but not limited to:. 
• Roadway design  

• Survey 

• Environmental 

• Geotechnical 

• Right-of-way 

• Utilities 
 
Firms/consultants meeting the requirements of this RFP are invited to submit their 
proposal. Request for Proposals (RFP) are available on the County’s Website Bid Postings 
• Russell County, VA • CivicEngage (russellcountyva.us) or email 
lonzo.lester@russellcountyva.us to request the RFQ. 

 

Proposals are due no later than 3:00 p.m., Friday, July 28, 2023. Any proposals 
received after this deadline will be returned to the offeror unopened. The County reserves 
the right to reject any and all proposals. 

 
Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (small or minority and/or women owned firms) are 
encouraged to submit proposals. MBE/WBE firms are encouraged to submit proposals. 

 
The County is an equal opportunity/affirmative action employer and will not discriminate 
based on race, creed, color, national origin, age, or handicap. 

 
BY ORDER OF THE 
RUSSELL COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

https://www.russellcountyva.us/Bids.aspx
https://www.russellcountyva.us/Bids.aspx
https://www.russellcountyva.us/Bids.aspx
mailto:lonzo.lester@russellcountyva.us


1 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 June 30, 2023 
 

Lonzo Lester 
Russell County County Administrator 
137 Highland Drive 
Lebanon,Virginia 24266 
 
RE: Victim Witness Grant Program (Year 3) 
 

Dear Lonzo Lester: 
 

Congratulations on being a recipient of the above referenced grant program! Your DCJS grant award 
number is 24-O1108VW20 and was approved for a total award of $65,100, funded in part through Award 
Numbers 2020-V2-GX-0048, 15POVC-21-GG-00602-ASSI, and/or 15POVC-22-GG-00681-ASSI. The 
project period is 7/1/2023 through 6/30/2024. Pursuant to the VOCA Fix to Sustain the Crime Victims Fund 
Act of 2021 (VOCA Fix) (Public Law No: 117-27) and the DCJS Emergency Match Waiver Request Policy 
for VOCA Subawards, there is no local match obligation for this award. 

 
Included with this letter is a Statement of Grant Award/Acceptance (SOGA). Copies of the FY24 

Special Conditions, Reporting Requirements, and Projected Due Dates are posted online at 
https://www.dcjs.virginia.gov/grants/grant-requirements for your review. In addition, there may be “Action 
Item” Special Conditions related to your grant award called Encumbrances that require your immediate 
attention. If there are any, please submit those documents via the On-line Grants Management System 
(OGMS) at https://ogms.dcjs.virginia.gov/.  

 
If you have not previously done so, you must register to use this web-based system. The instructions 

on Registering for a New Account and Submitting Action Item Encumbrances are posted here 
https://www.dcjs.virginia.gov/grants/ogms-training-resources along with other resources and training 
videos. All registrants will be approved within 3 – 5 business days.  

 
We will be happy to assist you in any way we can to assure your project’s success. To indicate your 

acceptance of the award and conditions, please sign the included SOGA and return it electronically within 
the next 60 days to grantsmgmt@dcjs.virginia.gov. Please note that you will not be able to draw down 
funds on this grant until DCJS receives the signed SOGA, and the grant is in Underway status in OGMS. 
If you have any questions, please contact your DCJS Grant Monitor Sharon Reed at 804 658 8179 or via 
email at sharon.reed@dcjs.virginia.gov.  

 
Sincerely,  

 
 

 
Jackson Miller 



2 
 

STATEMENT OF GRANT AWARD (SOGA) 
Virginia Department of Criminal Justice Services 

1100 Bank Street, 12th Floor 
Richmond, Virginia 23219 

Project Director Project Administrator Finance Officer 
Melody Blackwell-West 
Victim Witness Program Director 
53 E. Main Street 
Lebanon, Virginia 24266 
276-889-8225 
melody@russellcountyca.com 

Lonzo Lester 
Russell County County Administrator 
137 Highland Drive 
Lebanon, Virginia 24266 
276-889-8000 
lonzo.lester@russellcountyva.us 

Alicia McGlothlin 
Russell County Treasurer 
137 Highland Drive 
Lebanon, Virginia 24266 
276-889-8028 
alicia.mcglothlin@bvu.net 

 
*Please indicate your ICR in the space provided, if applicable. As the duly authorized 
representative, the undersigned, having received the Statement of Grant Awards (SOGA) and 
reviewing the Special Conditions, hereby accepts this grant and agree to the conditions and 
provisions of all other Federal and State laws and rules and regulations that apply to this award.  

      
Signature:  ______________________________  

        Authorized Official (Project Administrator) 
      

Title:   ______________________________ 
 
 
Date:   ______________________________

Victim Witness Grant Program (Year 3) 

Subgrantee:    Russell     
DCJS Grant Number:  24-O1108VW20   
UEI Number:    WMRHA68SMK19 
Grant Start Date:   7/1/2023  
Grant End Date:   6/30/2024 
 
Federal Grant Number(s):  2020-V2-GX-0048, 15POVC-21-GG-00602-ASSI, and/or 15POVC-22-GG-
00681-ASSI 
Federal Awardee:  OVC 
Federal Catalog Number:  16.575 
Project Description:   To provide direct services for crime victims. 
Federal Start Date:  10/1/2019, 10/1/2020, and/or 10/1/2021 

Federal VOCA Funds:  $44,100 
State Special Funds:   $21,000 
State General Funds: $0 

____ 
 

Total Budget:   $65,100 Indirect Cost Rate: _____%  *If applicable 
 

















































































Highlands Juvenile Detention Alternatives Program 

980 Valley Drive Suite #3 

Bristol, VA 24201 

Phone- (276) 669-0818 

FAX- (276) 669 6954 

E-Mail- dapbunch@bvunet.net

June 20, 2023 

To The County Administrator/City Manager: 

A resolution has been sent to each of our participating 

localities with a resolution from the Virginia Juvenile Community Crime 

Control Act (VJCCCA). This resolution is the same as has been in effect 

since the last resolution VJCCCA has on record from May 2, 2005. The 

only difference is that in Part 1, asking that if/when this locality 

should decide not to participate and accept funding from VJCCCA, the 
locality notifies the Department of Juvenile Justice, in writing, they 

wish to do so. By signing this resolution, it will remain 1n effect 

until the locality decides to drop out of this program. 

This resolution is flexible enough to allow Appalachian Juvenile 

Commission to adjust our plan, in accordance with plan revision 

policies, throughout the life of VJCCCA without bringing the revised 

plan before each local board. 

Again, enclosed is said resolution as well as a stamped return 

address envelope to Highlands Juvenile Detention Alternatives Program. 

These resolutions will be sent to VJCCCA who, in turn, will send to DJJ 

for record. Should you have questions concerning this matter, please 

contact Melisa Furtado, Regional Program Coordinator for VJCCCA 

Community Programs at 804-298-5259 or at 

Melisa.Furtado@djj.virginia.gov. Your attention to this matter is 

appreciated 

Sincerely, 

Program Supervisor 


















































































































































































	Authorization - Minutes BOS.pdf
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):

	Authorization - Expenditures.pdf
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):

	Reports1.pdf
	Meeting: 7/10/23         6:00 PM
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s):
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):




